
I.

II.

III.

IV.

A.

V.

A.

VI.

A.

1.

2.

B.

C.

D.

E.

VII.

VIII.

A.

B.

IX.

A.

B.

C.

D.

Brookdale Community College

Board of Trustees Public Business Meeting 
Tuesday, December 17, 2019 5:30 PM (EST) 

1 Crown Plaza Hazlet  New Jersey  07730 
Brookdale at Hazlet, Rms 102 & 103

Call to Order, Reading of Statement and Roll Call - Chair Abby-White 

Pledge of Allegiance - Chair Abby-White 

Adoption of Agenda - Chair Abby-White 

President’s Report - Dr. Stout

Recognition of Women's Soccer Team  

Review of Consent Agenda - Chair Abby-White
*Any item may be removed from the consent agenda for discussion by any voting member of the Board

of Trustees

Adoption of Consent Agenda  - Chair Abby-White  

Reports from the Board Committees and Liaisons - Chair Abby-White

Finance & Facilities Committee - December 11, 2019    - Trustee Kaufmann

Monthly Financial Reporting  - Trustee Kaufmann 

Update on Capital Projects
Capital Project Report submitted in Monthly Financial Dashboards 

Audit Committee - December 16, 2019 - Trustee Rambaud 

Student's Perspective - Trustee Deinhardt 

BCC Foundation - Dr. Stout 

Public Private Partnership Committee - December 16, 2019 - Chair Abby-White  

Public Comment on Agenda Items - Chair Abby-White 

Approval of Public Business Meeting Minutes  - Chair Abby-White

Approval of Public Business Meeting Minutes - November 19, 2019 - Chair Abby-White 

Approval of Executive Session Minutes - November 19, 2019 - Chair Abby-White  

Consent Agenda - Chair Abby-White - 5 minutes

Human Resources Recommendations 

Confidential Non-represented & Executive Compensation - FY20 

Acceptance of Gifts 

Approval of Budget Modification to the New Jersey Department of Education, Office of

Page 1 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



E.

F.

G.

X.

XI.

XII.

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

A.

B.

XVII.

XVIII.

XIX.

XX.

Career Readiness 

Purchases in Excess of $36,400 and New Jersey “Pay-to-Play” bids, and Pursuant to the

New Jersey “Pay to Play” Process, in Excess of $17,500  

Open Invoice Payment Requests for Vendors, Students and Employee Payments  

Monthly Financial Dashboards  

Approval of Second Amendment to Lease Agreement with New Jersey  City University -

Chair Abby-White 

Acceptance of FY19 Financial Audit - Chair Abby-White 

Approval of Revised Policy 6.3000 Student Conduct - Chair Abby-White 

Public Comment - Chair Abby-White 

Old/New Business - Chair Abby-White 

Recess for Dinner - Chair Abby-White 

Workshop on Enrollment 

Enrollment Projections - Dr. Laura Longo, Director, Institutional Research & Evaluation 

FY21 Budget Models - Ms. Teresa Manfreda, Interim Vice President Finance &

Operations  

Resolution to Hold a Closed Meeting - Chair Abby-White 

Motion to Re-Open the Meeting to the Public - Chair Abby-White 

Adjournment - Chair Abby-White 

Appendix - Board Materials 

Page 2 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Minutes of the Public Business Meeting, November 19, 2019 DRAFT Page | 1 

BROOKDALE COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Board of Trustees
Public Business Meeting Minutes

November 19, 2019

Brookdale Community College
Warner Student Life Center
765 Newman Springs Rd.
Lincroft, NJ  07738

A. Chair Abby-White called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M
B. Ms. Gruskos read the following statement:  “In compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act, 

N.J.S. 10:4-6 et seq., advance written notice of this meeting of the Board of Trustees was 
provided in the following manner:

On November 13, 2019 at 2 PM advance written notice of this meeting was posted at Brookdale 
Community College on the first floor of the Brookdale Administrative Center; emailed to The 
Asbury Park Press and the Star Ledger and filed with the Clerk of the County of Monmouth. 

Roll Call:

Present Trustees Administration:
Ms. Abby-White, Chair Dr. Matthew Reed
Mr. Dan Becht, Trustee Dr. Yesenia Madas

Dr. Nancy Kegelman
Ms. Latonya Brennan, Trustee Dr. Joan Scocco
Ms. Suzanne Brennan, Trustee (5:35 PM) Ms. Patricia Sensi

Dr. Hank Cram, Vice-Chair Mr. Ed Johnson
Ms. Lauren Deinhardt, Trustee Ms. Kathy Kamatani
Ms. Madeline Ferraro, Trustee* Ms. Teresa Manfreda

Ms. Barbara Horl, Trustee Dr. William Burns

Mr. Bret Kaufmann, Trustee Ms. Bonnie Passerella
Dr. David M. Stout, Secretary
Ms. Marta Rambaud, Trustee (5:35 PM) 
Dr. Les Richens, Trustee 

Absent Ms. Paul Crupi, Trustee Ms. Cynthia Gruskos, Recorder

College
Counsel

Mr. Sean Kean, Esq., General Counsel

* participation by teleconference

Page 3 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Minutes of the Public Business Meeting, November 19, 2019 DRAFT Page | 2 

Topic and Discussion Votes Taken Action and Follow-up Actions

Chair Abby-White read the Mission statement and led the college in the pledge of allegiance and a 
moment of silence for the student who passed away on November 4, 2019.
Adoption of agenda for Public Business 
Meeting

A motion to adopt the 
meeting agenda
was made by Trustee 
Richens and seconded by 
Trustee Latonya Brennan.        

Motion passed 
unanimously.

Board of Trustees Reorganization

A.  Election of Officers of the Board of 
Trustees – Mr. Kean opened 
nominations for the Office of the 
Chair.  Trustee Horl nominated 
Trustee Abby-White.  Hearing no 
further nominations, Mr. Kean 
closed the nominations for Chair.  

Election of Vice-Chair – Chair Abby-
White opened the nominations for 
the Office of Vice-Chair.  Trustee 
Richens nominated Trustee Cram.  
Hearing no further nominations, 
Chair Abby-White closed the 
nominations for Vice Chair.

Chair Abby-White thanked Trustee 
Suzanne Brennan for her service as 
Vice-Chair.  

Mr. Kean called for a roll 
call vote on the 
nomination of Trustee 
Abby-White as Board 
Chair for 2019-2020.

YES:  Trustees Becht, L. 
Brennan, Cram, Ferraro, 
Deinhardt, Horl, 
Kaufmann, Rambaud, 
Richens and Abby-White.

NO:  None

ABSTENTIONS:  None

Chair Abby-White called 
for a roll call vote on the 
nomination of Trustee 
Cram as Vice-Chair for 
2019-2020.

YES: YES:  Trustees Becht, 
L. Brennan, S. Brennan, 
Cram, Ferraro, Deinhardt, 
Horl, Kaufmann, 
Rambaud, Richens and 
Chair Abby-White.

NO:  None

ABSTENTIONS:  None

Page 4 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Minutes of the Public Business Meeting, November 19, 2019 DRAFT Page | 3 

Topic and Discussion Votes Taken Action and Follow-up Actions

B. Establishment of a Regular Meeting 
Schedule of the Board of Trustees

Chair Abby-White commented that 
the Board will be holding 3 focused 
Workshops during the year, with 
focused topics to include enrollment 
and the Aspen framework. The 
retreat dates will remain on the 
calendar, and a decision will be 
made by early February if the Board 
will hold the retreat.

C. Standing Committees – Chair Abby-
White announced that the Standing 
Committees will stay the same as 
last year, as no Trustee expressed an 
interest in changing committees.

D. Designation of Public Notice 
Requirements.

E. Annual Report of the College – Mr. 
Hudick provided a preview of the 
Annual Report.  He reviewed the 
format and the content.

A motion was made to 
adopt the presented 
calendar for 2020 by Vice-
Chair Cram and seconded 
by Trustee Horl.

Motion passed 
unanimously.

A motion was made to 
approve the resolution of 
designation of public 
notice requirements by 
Trustee Richens seconded 
by Trustee Horl.

Motion passed 
unanimously.

 

Page 5 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Minutes of the Public Business Meeting, November 19, 2019 DRAFT Page | 4 

Topic and Discussion Votes Taken Action and Follow-up Actions

Recognition of Inaugural class of Emeritus Employees –

Dr. Stout honored the inaugural class of Emeritus Employees with a reading of a proclamation.  A plague 
with their names inscribed was revealed and it will be housed in the Bankier Library.  

Jean Badgley* Professor, Emeritus - 2019
Barbara Boyington Professor, Emeritus - 2019
Carl Calendar Administrator, Emeritus - 2019
Margaret Faria Staff, Emeritus - 2019
Anita Feldman Professor, Emeritus - 2019
Arnold Gelfman* Administrator, Emeritus  -2019
Ellen Hemhauser Staff, Emeritus - 2019
Denise Hughes* Staff, Emeritus - 2019
Virginia Lee Professor, Emeritus - 2019
Nancy McHugh Administrator, Emeritus - 2019
Jacob Needle* Professor, Emeritus - 2019
James Palumbo* Administrator, Emeritus - 2019
Shahin Pirzad* Professor, Emeritus - 2019
Philip Poli* Professor, Emeritus - 2019
Louis Pullano Administrator, Emeritus - 2019
Susan Rosenberg Professor, Emeritus - 2019
Howard Rudrow* Professor, Emeritus - 2019
William Sandford Chief of Police, Emeritus - 2019
Enid Sidel Professor, Emeritus - 2019
Richard Sorrell* Professor, Emeritus - 2019
Douglas Welsh Professor, Emeritus - 2019
Sherri West Professor, Emeritus - 2019

Dr. Stout thanked the Emeritus Employee Selection Committee.  
*Posthumous Emeritus Employees
Approval of Memorandum of 
Understanding with Georgian Court 
University 3 + 1 Program

Dr. Stout acknowledged our longstanding 
and successful partnership with Georgian 
Court University.  He described the 
partnership which will allow Brookdale 
students to reduce the cost of their 
education by allowing them to complete 
their Associates degree and an additional 
year of coursework at Brookdale prior to 

A motion to approve by 
resolution the 
Memorandum of 
Understanding with 
Georgian Court University 
to offer a 3 + 1 agreement 
was made by Trustee 
Cram and seconded by 
Trustee S. Brennan.

Motion passed 
unanimously.

Page 6 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Minutes of the Public Business Meeting, November 19, 2019 DRAFT Page | 5 

Topic and Discussion Votes Taken Action and Follow-up Actions

them completing their last year of their 
Bachelor’s degree at Georgian Court 
University. Students will pay Brookdale 
tuition through their Junior year.   

A. Signing Ceremony with Georgian Court University 3 + 1 Program –After the agreement was 
signed, Dr. Marbach, President of Georgian Court University noted this historic moment.  He 
highlighted our shared commitment of providing affordability and accessibility to our students.  
He stated that he is looking forward to welcoming Brookdale students as future Lions

President’s Report – Dr. Stout thanked the campus community for working hard to keep our community 
moving forward after a traumatic event on campus. 

Review and Adoption of Consent Agenda

 Any item may be removed from the 
consent agenda for discussion by any 
voting member of the Board of Trustees.

A. Adoption of Consent agenda 

A motion to adopt the 
consent agenda was 
made by Trustee Richens      
and seconded by Trustee       
Horl.

Motion passed 
unanimously.

Reports from the Board Committees and Liaisons –

1) Finance & Facilities Committee – Trustee Kaufmann reported on the Finance & Facilities meeting held 
on November 12.  He highlighted the following:

1. Based on the college’ financial reporting, FY19’s revenue and expenses are as projected.  

2. The pending FY21 budget will bring significant financial challenges, as enrollment continues to 
decline and operational expenses continue to increase.  For this reason, focus on student 
retention and student success is extremely important.  He stressed the importance of small 
improvements in student retention and student success will have a big impact on how we 
address these financial challenges.

3. Trustee Kaufmann provided an update on our current capital improvement projects. 

2) Student Success & Educational Excellence Committee – Dr. Cram reported on the Student Success & 
Educational Excellence Committee meeting held on November 11.   –  He highlighted the following:
a) Dr. Reed reported on negotiations with four year partners regarding the implementation of 3+ 1 

programs. 
b) Dr. Reed provided an update on the College’s progress in compliance of the state requirements 

for open source textbooks and digital materials.
c) Program changes were discussed for informational purposes only.
d) Dr. Reed provided a proposal developed with faculty buy in to address dual credit instructor 

qualifications and quality control of course outcomes.  The proposal is based on the use of 

Page 7 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Minutes of the Public Business Meeting, November 19, 2019 DRAFT Page | 6 

Topic and Discussion Votes Taken Action and Follow-up Actions

bifurcated grades, and the committee recommended that the proposal be reviewed with the 
county’s superintendents. 

3) Graduate Trustee Report – Trustee Deinhardt is working with a small group of diverse students to 
seek input on student concerns.  She reported that the students were dissatisfied with the current 
advisor/registration process and the graduation apparel.

4) Governance Committee – Trustee Suzanne Brennan reported on the meeting held on November 13.  
She highlighted the following:
a) Two policies were reviewed and one will be lodged tonight and the second reaffirmed in January.
b) The committee supported initiating a full policy review utilizing a consultant.
c) Guidelines for the election process were codified.
d) The process for the President’s evaluation was reviewed.
e) The Board self-evaluation survey will be reviewed and revised if necessary and then administered 

in January.
f) Professional Development opportunities include attendance at the ACCT Legislative Summit in 

February and the implementation of focused workshops this year. 
5) Brookdale Community College Foundation – On behalf of the Foundation, Dr. Stout reported on their 

fundraising activities, including the “Invest in Student Success Campaign”, the call for Distinguished 
Alumni and Honorary Degree nominations, the planning for the Scholarship Ball on June 5, 2020, 
funding for the replacement of computers in the Library and the support of creating partnerships with 
area businesses.

Approval of Public Business Meeting 
Minutes – October 29, 2019

A motion to approve the 
minutes from the public 
business meeting held on 
October 29, 2019 was 
made by Trustee L. 
Brennan and seconded by 
Trustee S. Brennan.

Motion passed 
unanimously.

ABSTENTIONS: Trustee 
Ferraro

Approval of Executive Session Minutes – 
October 29, 2019

A motion to approve the 
executive session minutes 
from the meeting held on 
October 29, 2019 was 
made by Trustee Horl            

Page 8 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Minutes of the Public Business Meeting, November 19, 2019 DRAFT Page | 7 

Topic and Discussion Votes Taken Action and Follow-up Actions

and seconded by Trustee        
Rambaud.
   
Motion passed 
unanimously. 

ABSTENTIONS:  Trustee 
Ferraro

Public Comment on Agenda Items – 

There was no public comment on agenda items.

Consent Agenda

A. Acceptance of Gifts

B. Approval of Human Resources

C. Purchases in Excess of $36,400 and 
New Jersey “Pay-to-Play” bids, and 
Pursuant to the New Jersey “Pay to 
Play” Process, in Excess of $17,500 - 

D. Open Invoice Payment Requests for 
Vendor, Student and Employee 
Payments

E. Monthly Financial Reports

A motion to approve the 
consent agenda was 
made by Trustee Becht        
and seconded by Trustee        
Rambaud.

Motion passed 
unanimously.

YES: Trustees Becht, L. 
Brennan, S. Brennan, 
Cram, Deinhardt, Ferraro, 
Horl, Kaufmann, 
Rambaud, Richens and 
Chair Abby-White. 

NO:  None

ABSTENTIONS:  None
Approval of Memorandum of Agreement 
between The Brookdale Community College 
and the BCAA 

A motion to approve by 
resolution the 
memorandum of 
agreement between 
Brookdale Community 
College and the 
Brookdale Community 
College Administrative 
Association was made by 
Trustee Rambaud and 
seconded by Trustee Horl.               

Page 9 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Minutes of the Public Business Meeting, November 19, 2019 DRAFT Page | 8 

Topic and Discussion Votes Taken Action and Follow-up Actions

YES: Trustees Becht, L. 
Brennan, Cram, 
Deinhardt, Ferraro, Horl, 
Kaufmann, Rambaud, 
Richens and Chair Abby-
White. 

NO:  None

ABSTENTIONS:  Trustee S. 
Brennan

Approval of Memorandum of Agreement 
between the Brookdale Community College 
and the PSA

A motion to approve by 
resolution the 
memorandum of 
agreement between the 
Brookdale Community 
College and the 
Professional Staff 
Association was made by 
Trustee Richens and 
seconded by Trustee Horl.  
    
YES: Trustees Becht, L. 
Brennan, Cram, 
Deinhardt, Ferraro, Horl, 
Kaufmann, Rambaud, 
Richens and Chair Abby-
White. 

NO:  None

ABSTENTIONS:  Trustee S. 
Brennan

Lodging of Policies A motion to lodge revised 
policy 6.3000 Student 
conduct was made by 
Trustee Richens and 
seconded by Trustee S. 
Brennan.
YES: Trustees Becht, L. 
Brennan, S. Brennan, 
Cram, Deinhardt, Ferraro, 

Page 10 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Minutes of the Public Business Meeting, November 19, 2019 DRAFT Page | 9 

Topic and Discussion Votes Taken Action and Follow-up Actions

Horl, Kaufmann, 
Rambaud, Richens and 
Chair Abby-White. 

NO:  None

ABSTENTIONS:  None

Public Comment 

Nicholas Picarello, Former Health Science Student – Nicholas commented on a complaint he had 
submitted to the President where he documented that while he was a student, the college created and 
caused an unsafe environment.  In addition he reported that an act of retaliation by a health science 
faculty member occurred which the President failed to act on. 

Tom Brennan, Radio Station Manager – Mr. Brennan provided an update on their fundraising activities.  
He also reported that radio station personnel have reported health problems over the years, which he 
believes is linked to environmental concerns to their location in the basement of ATEC.  He urged the 
Board of Trustees to provide them working conditions where they will not get sick.
 
Old/New Business 
Trustee Horl provided an update on the Community College Opportunity Grant bill (A5979) which will be 
considered at the Assembly Appropriations Committee In December. 

Chair Abby-White announced that the Executive and Finance & Facilities committees have been changed 
to Wednesday, December 11.

Resolution to Hold a Closed Meting

College Counsel read the Resolution to hold 
a closed meeting (Attachment A)

A motion was made to 
hold a closed session by 
Trustee Richens and 
seconded by Trustee S. 
Brennan.       

Motion passed 
unanimously.

Motion to Re-Open the Meeting to the 
Public 

A motion was made to 
reopen the meeting to 
the public by Trustee 
Richens and seconded by 
Trustee Abby-White.
    

Page 11 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Minutes of the Public Business Meeting, November 19, 2019 DRAFT Page | 10 

Topic and Discussion Votes Taken Action and Follow-up Actions

Motion passed 
unanimously.

Adjournment 

Meeting adjourned at 7:20 PM

A motion to adjourn the 
meeting was made by 
Trustee Becht and 
seconded by Trustee Horl.       

Motion passed 
unanimously.

Page 12 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



RESOLUTION 
Approved November 19, 2019 

BROOKDALE COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTIVE SESSION

WHEREAS, while the Sen. Byron M. Baer Open Public Meetings Act (N.J.S.A. 10:4-6 et 
seq.) requires all meetings of the Brookdale Community College Board of Trustees to be held in 
public, N.J.S.A. 10:4-12(b) sets forth nine (9) types of matters that may lawfully be discussed in 
"Executive Session," i.e. without the public being permitted to attend, and

WHEREAS, the Brookdale Community College Board of Trustees has determined that     
3 issues are permitted by N.J.S.A. 10:4-12(b) to be discussed without the public in attendance 
and shall be discussed during an Executive Session to be held on November 19, 2019 at 
approximately 7 PM the nine (9) exceptions to open public meetings set forth in N.J.S.A. 10:4-
12(b) are listed below, and next to each exception is a box which will be marked when the issues 
to be privately discussed fall within that exception, and after each exception is a space where 
additional information that will disclose as much information about the discussion as possible 
without undermining the purpose of the exception shall be written.

 “(1) Any matter which, by express provision of Federal law, State statute or rule of court 
shall be rendered confidential or excluded from public discussion." The legal citation to the 
provision(s) at issue is:______________ and the nature of the matter, described as specifically as 
possible without undermining the need for confidentiality is______________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________

 "(2) Any matter in which the release of information would impair a right to receive funds 
from the federal government." The nature of the matter, described as specifically as possible 
without undermining the need for confidentiality is ____________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________

 "(3) Any material the disclosure of which constitutes an unwarranted invasion of 
individual privacy such as any records, data, reports, recommendations, or other personal 
material of any educational, training, social service, medical, health, custodial, child protection, 
rehabilitation, legal defense, welfare, housing, relocation, insurance and similar program or 
institution operated by a public body pertaining to any specific individual admitted to or served 
by such institution or program, including but not limited to information relative to the 
individual's personal and family circumstances, and any material pertaining to admission, 
discharge, treatment, progress or condition of any individual, unless the individual concerned (or, 
in the case of a minor or incompetent, his guardian) shall request in writing that the same be 
disclosed publicly." The nature of the matter, described as specifically as possible without 
undermining the need for confidentiality is ___________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________

Page 13 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



RESOLUTION 
Approved November 19, 2019 

______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________

x x
"(4) Any collective bargaining agreement, or the terms and conditions of which are 

proposed for inclusion in any collective bargaining agreement, including the negotiation of terms 
and conditions with employees or representatives of employees of the public body.(labor 
negotiations )

"(5) Any matter involving the purchase lease or acquisition of real property with public 
funds, the setting of bank rates or investment of public funds where it could adversely affect the 
public interest if discussion of such matters were disclosed." The nature of the matter, described 
as specifically as possible without undermining the need for confidentiality 

"(6) Any tactics and techniques utilized in protecting the safety and property of the public 
provided that their disclosure could impair such protection. Any investigations of violations or 
possible violations of the law." The nature of the matter, described as specifically as possible 
without undermining the need for confidentiality is: _ 

"(7) Any pending or anticipated litigation or contract negotiation in which the 
public body is or may become a party. Any matters falling within the attorney-client 
privilege, to the extent that confidentiality is required in order for the attorney to exercise 
his ethical duties as a lawyer." The parties to and docket numbers of each item of 
litigation and/or the parties to each contract discussed are and the nature of the 
discussion, described as specifically as possible without undermining the need for 
confidentiality is: potential litigation regarding construction issues at the Wall Campus 
and matters falling within the Attorney-Client Privilege.

"(8) Any matter involving the employment, appointment, termination of employment, 
terms and conditions of employment, evaluation of the performance, promotion or disciplining of 
any specific prospective public officer or employee or current public officer or employee 
employed or appointed by the public body, unless all individual employees or appointees whose 
rights could be adversely affected request in writing that such matter or matters be discussed at a 
public meeting." Subject to the balancing of the public's interest and the employee's privacy 
rights under South Jersey Publishing Co. v. New Jersey Expressway Authority, 124 N.J. 478 
(1991), the employee(s) and nature of the discussion, described as specifically as possible 
without undermining the need for confidentiality is: 

 "(9) Any deliberation of a public body occurring after a public hearing that may result in 
the imposition of a specific civil penalty upon the responding party or the suspension or loss of a 
license or permit belonging to the responding party as a result of an act of omission for which the 
responding party bears responsibility." The nature of the matter, described as specifically as 
possible without undermining the need for confidentiality is a 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________

x

x

Page 14 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



RESOLUTION 
Approved November 19, 2019 

WHEREAS, the length of the Executive Session is estimated to be  60  minutes after which the 
public meeting of the Brookdale Community College Board of Trustees shall 
(select one)       reconvene and immediately adjourn or     r  reconvene and proceed with 
business where formal action may be taken.

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Brookdale Community College Board of 
Trustees will go into Executive Session for only the above stated reasons; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Brookdale Community College Board of 
Trustees hereby declares that its discussion of the aforementioned subject(s) will be made public 
at a time when the public's interest in disclosure is greater than any privacy or governmental 
interest being protected from disclosure. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board Secretary, at the present public meeting, 
shall read aloud enough of this resolution so that members of the public in attendance can 
understand, as precisely as possible, the nature of the matters that will privately discussed; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board Secretary, on the next business day 
following this meeting, shall post this Resolution on the Board website and furnish a copy of this 
Resolution to any member of the public who requests one at the fees allowed by N.J.S.A. 47:1A-
1 et seq.

x

Page 15 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



 

December 17, 2019:  Associate Vice President of Human Resources & Organizational Safety, Patricia Sensi 

 

3.1 Human Resources Recommendations 
 
Hires, Change of Status & Separations - This month there are a total of 36 recommended items.  A summary of the 
action items is listed below with supporting documentation attached. 
 
A.  Hires Recommendations 
Support Staff  2 
Police  2 
Adjuncts  4 
 
B.  Change of Status Recommendations 
Executive  1 
Faculty  2 
Administrative              18 
Support Staff  3 
 
C.  Separations Recommendations 
Faculty  2 
Administrative  2 

  



 

December 17, 2019:  Associate Vice President of Human Resources & Organizational Safety, Patricia Sensi 

 

A. HIRES 
 
SUPPORT STAFF 
1. Name:   Shaun-Marie Cooke 
 Department:  Library 
 Position:  Associate 
 Salary:   $41,415 
 Effective:  1/2/20 
 
2. Name:   Michael Lowsky 
 Department:  Testing Services 
 Position:  Senior Technician 
 Salary:   $38,039 
 Effective:  1/2/20 
 
POLICE 
1. Name:   Alexandra Clayton 
 Department:  Police 
 Position:  Probationary Police Officer 
 Salary:   $42,000 

Effective: 1/3/20 or as soon thereafter as possible pending completion of all final 
contingencies 

 
2. Name:   Andrew Gioia 

Department:  Police 
 Position:  Probationary Police Officer 
 Salary:   $42,000 

Effective: 1/3/20 or as soon thereafter as possible pending completion of all final 
contingencies 

 
ADJUNCTS 
1. Name:   Kathleen Barnett 

Department:  NURS 
 
2. Name:   Jessica Domb 

Department:  NURS 
 
3. Name:   Sara Nold 

Department:  NURS 
  



 

December 17, 2019:  Associate Vice President of Human Resources & Organizational Safety, Patricia Sensi 

 

4. Name:   Joe Novick 
 Department:  Psychology 
 

ADJUNCT DEGREE SUMMARY 
Doctoral Masters 

1 3 

 
 
B. CHANGE OF STATUS 
 
EXECUTIVE 
1. Name:   Allison Fitzpatrick 
 Department:  Strategic Development & Educational Access 
 Position:  Interim Dean, Regional Locations 

Action:   Extension of interim assignment 
 New Salary:  No change 
 Effective:  1/1/20 until further notice but not later than 6/30/20 
 
FACULTY 
1. Name:   Samantha Doluweera 
 Department:  Mathematics 
 Position:  Instructor 
 Action:   Leave without pay 
 Effective:  11/8/19 – 11/25/19 
 
2. Name:   Townsend Weeks 
 Department:  Environmental Science 
 Position:  Associate Professor 
 Action:   Special Purpose Leave without pay 
 Effective:  9/26/19 – 12/31/19 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE 
1. Name:   Meghan Begley 
 Department:  Continuing & Professional Studies 
 Position:  Confidential Administrative Assistant II 
 Action:   Reclassification from N4 to A2 position 
 New Salary:  $52,914, to be prorated accordingly 
 Effective:  1/1/20 
  



 

December 17, 2019:  Associate Vice President of Human Resources & Organizational Safety, Patricia Sensi 

 

2. Name:   Shannen Deptula 
 Department:  Admissions 
 Position:  Assistant Director 
 Action:   Change in status from interim to regular A3 position through bona fide search 
 New Salary:  No change 
 Effective:  12/18/19 
 
3. Name:   Allison Fitzpatrick 
 Department:  Strategic Development & Educational Access 
 Position:  Interim Dean, Regional Locations 
 Action:   Non-renewal in Director, Brookdale at Wall position, through reorganization 
 Effective:  11/30/19 
 
4. Name:   Eleanor Glazewski 
 Department:  Registrar 
 Position:  Interim Registrar 
 Action:   Extension of temporary assignment 
 Effective:  1/1/20 – until further notice, but not later than 6/30/20 
 
5. Name:   Bruce Marich 
 Department:  President’s Office 
 Position:  Director, Special Projects 
 Action:   Non-renewal in Director, Brookdale at Hazlet position, through reorganization 
 Effective:  11/30/19 
 
6. Name:   Jackeline Mejias-Fuertes 
 Department:  Small Business Development Center 
 Position:  Director, Small Business Development Center 
 Action:   Extension of grant-funded position 
 Effective:  1/1/20 – 6/30/20 
 
7. Name:   Gregory Menza 
 Department:  Continuing & Professional Studies 

Position: Job Developer, HealthWorks/Adult Basic Education Programs, full-time, grant-
funded position 

 Action:   Lateral move through bona fide search 
 Effective:  1/2/20 
  



 

December 17, 2019:  Associate Vice President of Human Resources & Organizational Safety, Patricia Sensi 

 

8. Name:   Jenna Moltisanti 
 Department:  Strategic Development & Education Access 
 Position:  Associate Director, Regional Locations 
 Action:   Title change 
 New Salary:  No change 

Effective:  11/1/19 
 
9. Name:   Michael Naparlo 
 Department:  Facilities 
 Position:  Interim Manager 
 Action:   Extension of monthly stipend 
 Effective:  1/1/20 – until further notice, but not later than 6/30/20 
 
10. Name:   Cara Novak 
 Department:  K-12 Partnerships 
 Position:  Administrator 
 Action:   Retroactive monthly stipend of $312 for assuming additional responsibilities 
 Effective:  7/1/18 – 4/30/19 
 
11. Name:   Maggie Osmulski 
 Department:  Small Business Development Center 
 Position:  Assistant Director, Small Business Development Center 
 Action:   Extension of grant-funded position 
 Effective:  1/1/20 – 6/30/20 
 
12. Name:   Laura Qaissaunee 
 Department:  Grants Development 
 Position:  Director, Grants & Institutional Development 
 Action:   Extension of monthly stipend 
 Effective:  1/1/20 – until further notice, but not later than 6/30/20 
 
13. Name:   Maureen Selheim 
 D Department:  Strategic Development & Education Access 
 Position:  Associate Director, Regional Locations 
 Action:   Title change 
 New Salary:  No change 
 Effective:  11/1/19 
  



 

December 17, 2019:  Associate Vice President of Human Resources & Organizational Safety, Patricia Sensi 

 

14. Name:   Paulette Simpson 
 Department:  Strategic Development & Education Access 
 Position:  Associate Director, Regional Locations 
 Action:   Title change 
 New Salary:  No change 
 Effective:  11/1/19 
 
15. Name:   Charanne Smith 
 Department:  Student Basic Needs 
 Position:  Director 
 Action:   Non-renewal in Director, Brookdale at Neptune position, through reorganization 
 Effective:  11/30/19 
 
16. Name:   AnnMarie Sparaco 
 Department:  President’s Office 
 Position:  Director, Special Projects 
 Action:   Extension of monthly stipend 
 Effective:  1/1/20 – until further notice, but not later than 6/30/20 
 
17. Name:   Ann Tickner Jankowski 
 Department:  VP Learning 
 Position:  Director, Transfer Resources/Articulation 
 Action:   Retroactive monthly stipend of $312 for assuming additional responsibilities 
 Effective:  7/1/18 – 4/30/19 
 
18. Name:   Candice Watts 
 Department:  Strategic Development & Educational Access 
 Position:  Associate Director, Regional Locations 
 Action:   Change in status from A3 to A4 position through bona fide search 
 New Salary:  $65,135 to be prorated accordingly 
 Effective:  1/16/20 
 
SUPPORT STAFF 
1. Name:   Victoria Massa 
 Department:  Accounts Receivable 
 Position:  Specialist 
 Action:   End of acting administrative position, return to N4 position 
 Effective:  12/13/19 
  



 

December 17, 2019:  Associate Vice President of Human Resources & Organizational Safety, Patricia Sensi 

 

2. Name:   James Purcaro 
 Department:  Police 
 Position:  Security Guard, part-time, 26hrs/wk 
 Action:   Extension of temporary assignment 
 New Salary:  No change 

Effective: 12/24/19 as temporary position is needed, until further notice, but not later than 
6/30/20 

 
3. Name:   Kevin Tyrrell 
 Department:  Police 
 Position:  Security Guard, part-time, 26hrs/wk 
 Action:   Extension of temporary assignment 
 New Salary:  No change 

Effective: 12/24/19 as temporary position is needed, until further notice, but not later than 
6/30/20 

 
 
C. SEPARATIONS 
 
FACULTY 
1. Name:   Sheila Duane 
 Department:  English 
 Position:  Instructor 
 Action:   End of temporary assignment 
 Effective:  12/21/19 
 
2. Name:   Janine Siegel 

Department:  Reading 
 Position:  Instructor 
 Action:   End of temporary assignment 
 Effective:  12/21/19 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE 
1. Name:   Herbert Cohen 
 Department:  Student Affairs 
 Position:  Interim Executive Director, Enrollment Services 
 Action:   Retirement 
 Effective:  12/31/20 
  



 

December 17, 2019:  Associate Vice President of Human Resources & Organizational Safety, Patricia Sensi 

 

2. Name:   Stuart Goodwin 
 Department:  Finance & Operations 
 Position:  Staff Accountant 
 Action:   End of temporary assignment 
 Effective:  11/26/19 



December 17, 2019: Associate Vice President, Human Resources & Organizational Safety, Patricia Sensi

RESOLUTION
WHEREAS, Policy 3.0002 states that confidential non-represented employees 

shall receive the same benefits as those provided to represented 
employees whenever possible; and

WHEREAS, the Board ratified a contract with the Administrative Association 
providing a general wage increase in FY20 of a flat dollar equivalent of 
2.376%: and

WHEREAS, the confidential non-represented employees have performed at a 
consistently high level; and

WHEREAS, the President recommends an increase for these employees 
consistent with the unionized administrators for FY20; and

WHEREAS, Policy 3.0002 also states that the President shall make 
recommendations to the Board of Trustees on proposed compensation for 
individuals in positions at the Dean’s level and above; and

WHEREAS, the members of the executive team (Dean, Associate Vice 
President, and Vice President) have performed with excellence and 
dedication through the past year; and

WHEREAS, the President recommends and strongly supports salary 
adjustments for the executive team of a flat dollar equivalent of 2%;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees approves salary 
adjustments for confidential non-represented administrators and for the 
executive staff (Deans, Associate Vice President, Vice President) consistent 
with the above recommendations; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees wishes to acknowledge 
the commitment and leadership of said employees and thanks them for 
their service and dedication to the College and our students.

December 17, 2019    Dr. David Stout, President

Page 32 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



December 17, 2019: Laura Qaissaunee, Director of Grants & Institutional Development

1.51 Acceptance of Gifts
Background

Board Policy 2.0000 provides that the President may accept unconditional gifts for the College and that 
acceptance of such gifts shall be reported to the Board of Trustees each month.  

The College continues to receive a variety of useful and welcome gifts from many sources.  These are 
generally donated by private individuals, business firms, students, and staff whose continued interest and 
support are evinced in these actions.

The following gift has been accepted and acknowledged for Brookdale Community College by the 
President:

DATE DONOR ITEM
September 13, 2019 General Motors Corporation Donation of 2017 Chevy Camaro
September 12, 2019 General Motors Corporation Donation of a 2017 GMC Terrain
November 18, 2019 Aaron Fichtner, Ph.D.

President
New Jersey Council of County Colleges
330 West State Street
Trenton, NJ  08618

Donation of professional attire to 
the Veterans Center

Page 33 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



December 17, 2019: Director of Grants and Institutional Development, Laura Qaissaunee

2.3 Approval of Budget Modification to the New Jersey Department of Education, 
Office of Career Readiness 

Perkins Career and Technical Education
Brookdale submitted a budget modification to the New Jersey State Department of Education, Office of 
Career Readiness on November 26, 2019, under its Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education 
Improvement Act of 2006.  The modification will enable the college to purchase additional supplies and 
equipment for Communication Media, Graphic Design and Nursing programs through additional Perkins 
grant funds received and cost savings realized to date.  

The New Jersey Department of Education requires a signed board resolution which authorizes 
acceptance of the changes.  A copy of the resolution is attached.

Recommendation:
The President recommends that the Board of Trustees adopt a resolution accepting the budget 
modification and authorizing the President to sign the resolution to the New Jersey Department of 
Education.

Page 34 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



December 17, 2019: Director of Grants and Institutional Development, Laura Qaissaunee

R E S O L U T I O N

WHEREAS, Brookdale submitted a budget modification to the New Jersey State Department of 

Education, Office of Career Readiness on November 26, 2019, for funding under its Carl D. Perkins 

Career and Technical Education Improvement Act of 2006.  The modification will enable the college to 

purchase additional supplies and equipment for Communication Media, Graphic Design and Nursing 

programs through additional Perkins grant funds received and cost savings realized to date; and

WHEREAS, The New Jersey Department of Education, Office of Career Readiness 

requires this resolution; and

WHEREAS, the President recommends submission of said budget modification;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees of Brookdale Community 

College authorizes the submission of this budget modification to the New Jersey Department of 

Education, Office of Career Readiness.

Date: SIGNED:
David M. Stout, Ph.D., President

Page 35 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



December 17, 2019: Interim Vice President, Teresa Manfreda

4.2 Purchases in Excess of $36,400 and New Jersey “Pay-to-Play” bids, and
Pursuant to the New Jersey “Pay to Play” Process, in Excess of $17,500

Enclosed is a resolution with an attached list indicating proposed Public Contracts for Brookdale 
Community College in excess of $36,400. These proposed contracts have been bid in accordance 
with “County College Contracts Law,” N.J.S. Chapter 64A-Title 18A, and Board of Trustees’ Policy 
No. 4.2000, are under State contract or are legal exceptions to the Public Contracts Law. 

Also listed are bids and proposals over $17,500 that met the New Jersey State “Pay-to-Play” 
Law, N.J.S.A. 19:44a-20.1 et seq., Chapters 51 and 271.

This report was reviewed by the President and the Finance & Facilities Committee at a meeting 
held December 11, 2019.

Page 36 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



        

R E S O L U T I O N
           

        
WHEREAS, County College Contracts Law, Chapter 64A, title 18A, requires Board approval for 

any purchase in excess of $36,400, or purchases with a combined total in excess of $36,400; and

WHEREAS, the New Jersey State “Pay-to-Play” Law, N.J.S.A. 19.44a-20.1 et seq, Chapters 51 and 

271, requires Board of Trustee approval for any purchase over $17,500, that is not awarded pursuant to a “fair 

and open” process; and

WHEREAS, the Interim Vice President, Finance & Operations has determined and certified in 

writing that the value of the acquisition will exceed $17,500; and 

WHEREAS, the vendor has completed all the required certifications and disclosures; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Business Disclosure Entity Certification and the 

Determination of Value be placed on file in the Purchasing Office with this resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has reviewed the purchases on the list attached hereto and 

made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS the College certifies the availability of funds to cover the maximum dollar value of the 

pending contract as set forth in this resolution;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of Brookdale Community College 

that Purchases as indicated on the attached list have been reviewed and the same are hereby approved.

Page 37 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Bo
ar

d 
Ite

m
 N

o.
 

Ve
nd

or
/C

on
tr

ac
to

r
Ca

te
go

ry
 / 

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Ba

si
s o

f 
Aw

ar
d

Am
ou

nt
 o

f 
Pu

rc
ha

se

Ca
pi

ta
l

1
De

si
gn

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Gr
ou

p 
Ar

ch
ite

ct
s,

 A
IA

, 
In

c.

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

, R
FQ

 N
o.

 0
1-

20
19

 / 
Th

is
 co

nt
ra

ct
 is

 fo
r 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

an
d 

co
ns

ul
tin

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r t
he

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f 
th

e 
HV

AC
 sy

st
em

 in
 th

e 
BA

C 
Bu

ild
in

g 
an

d 
is

 fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
Ch

ap
te

r 1
2.

RF
Q

 $
    

    
23

,9
00

.0
0 

2
La

nd
Te

k 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
LL

C,
 d

ba
 U

ni
te

d 
Te

rr
ai

n 
Gr

ou
p

Sa
lt 

St
or

ag
e 

Bu
ild

in
g 

Sl
ab

 (R
ev

is
ed

), 
Bi

d 
N

o.
 2

0-
19

 / 
N

ot
ic

e 
w

as
 se

nt
 to

 1
7 

ve
nd

or
s,

 re
ce

iv
ed

 9
 re

pl
ie

s.
 T

hi
s c

on
tr

ac
t i

s f
or

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
sl

ab
 

fo
r t

he
 sa

lt 
st

or
ag

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
an

d 
is

 fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
Ch

ap
te

r 1
2.

Bi
d

 $
    

    
75

,0
70

.0
0 

G
ra

nt
3

La
da

ci
n 

N
et

w
or

k;
    

    
 

M
on

m
ou

th
 C

ou
nt

y 
Vo

ca
tio

na
l S

ch
oo

l; 
   

Co
m

m
un

ity
 A

ff
ai

rs
 

an
d 

Re
so

ur
ce

 C
en

te
r; 

 
Li

te
ra

cy
 V

ol
un

te
er

 o
f 

N
ew

 Je
rs

ey

Ad
ul

t B
as

ic
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

Sk
ill

s/
Li

te
ra

cy
 P

ro
gr

am
 / 

Ex
em

pt
 1

8A
:6

4A
-2

5.
10

. 
(J

oi
nt

 p
ur

ch
as

es
 b

y 
co

un
ty

 co
lle

ge
s,

 m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 o

r c
ou

nt
ie

s;
 a

ut
ho

rit
y)

. 
Th

es
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

s a
re

 fo
r t

he
 re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t t

o 
th

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 e
nt

iti
es

, w
hi

ch
 

fo
rm

 th
e 

M
on

m
ou

th
 C

ou
nt

y 
Ad

ul
t B

as
ic

 S
ki

lls
 C

on
so

rt
iu

m
. T

he
 C

on
so

rt
iu

m
 

w
as

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

nd
 su

pp
or

t t
he

 a
du

lt 
ba

si
c e

du
ca

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

. 
As

 th
e 

le
ad

 a
ge

nc
y,

 th
e 

Co
lle

ge
 re

po
rt

s t
o 

th
e 

N
ew

 Je
rs

ey
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f 

La
bo

r a
nd

 is
 d

ire
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
“W

or
kf

or
ce

 In
no

va
tio

n 
an

d 
O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 

Ac
t”

/T
itl

e 
II 

Pr
og

ra
m

. T
he

se
 co

nt
ra

ct
s a

re
 fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

AB
E/

Li
te

ra
cy

 G
ra

nt
. 

FY
19

 $
18

1,
00

0.

Ex
em

pt
 $

    
  1

86
,0

00
.0

0 
*

O
pe

ra
tin

g

4
Un

iv
er

sa
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

e 
LL

C 
db

a 
Al

lie
d 

Un
iv

er
sa

l S
ec

ur
ity

 
Se

rv
ic

es

Ar
m

ed
 G

ua
rd

 S
er

vi
ce

s /
 E

xe
m

pt
 1

8A
:6

4A
.2

5.
9 

(S
ta

te
 C

on
tr

ac
t)

. T
hi

s S
ta

te
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 is
 fo

r a
rm

ed
 g

ua
rd

 se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

ph
as

ed
 in

 a
t v

ar
io

us
 

re
gi

on
al

 lo
ca

tio
ns

. T
he

 co
st

 o
f a

rm
ed

 g
ua

rd
s i

s p
ar

tia
lly

 o
ff

se
t b

y 
a 

sa
vi

ng
s 

in
 sa

la
ry

, b
en

ef
its

, a
nd

 su
bs

tit
ut

e 
ho

ur
ly

 w
or

ke
rs

 fo
r t

he
 cu

rr
en

t s
ec

ur
ity

 
gu

ar
d 

lin
es

 in
 th

e 
Po

lic
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t b

ud
ge

t. 
 

Ex
em

pt
 $

    
    

97
,6

05
.0

0 
*

* 
Es

tim
at

ed
 e

xp
en

se
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 d

at
a 

 U
nl

es
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
ex

em
pt

, b
id

s 
w

er
e 

pu
bl

ic
ly

 a
dv

er
tis

ed
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 la

w
. 

Ag
en

da
 fo

r P
ur

ch
as

es
 in

 E
xc

es
s o

f $
36

,4
00

De
ce

m
be

r 1
7,

 2
01

9

P
ag

e 
38

 o
f 6

4
12

/1
6/

20
19

 9
:2

4:
45

 A
M



B
o

ar
d

 

It
e

m
 N

o
. 

V
en

d
o

r/
C

o
n

tr
ac

to
r

C
at

e
go

ry
 /

 D
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

B
as

is
 o

f 

A
w

ar
d

A
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

P
u

rc
h

as
e

O
p

er
at

in
g

1
P

K
F 

O
'C

o
n

n
o

r 
D

av
ie

s,
 

LL
P

In
te

rn
al

 A
u

d
it

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s,

 R
FP

 N
o

. 0
4

-2
0

 /
 N

o
ti

ce
 w

as
 s

e
n

t 
to

 1
1

 f
ir

m
s,

 r
e

ce
iv

ed
 6

 

re
p

lie
s.

 T
h

is
 is

 a
 6

-m
o

n
th

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t 

w
it

h
 a

n
 o

p
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
a 

o
n

e 
ye

ar
 r

e
n

ew
al

 f
o

r 

in
te

rn
al

 a
u

d
it

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

. T
h

is
 c

o
n

tr
ac

t 
is

 f
u

n
d

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
O

p
er

at
in

g 
B

u
d

ge
t.

 F
Y1

9
 

$
1

0
0

,8
4

5
.

R
FP

$
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

*

* 
Es

ti
m

at
e

d
 e

xp
e

n
se

 b
as

e
d

 o
n

 h
is

to
ri

ca
l d

at
a 

 U
n

le
ss

 o
th

e
rw

is
e

 e
xe

m
p

t,
 b

id
s 

w
e

re
 p

u
b

lic
ly

 a
d

ve
rt

is
e

d
 a

cc
o

rd
in

g 
to

 la
w

. 

A
d

d
e

n
d

u
m

D
e

ce
m

b
er

 1
7

, 2
0

1
9



December 17, 2019: Interim Vice President, Teresa Manfreda

4.2c  Accounts Payable Check Register Summary 

The Check Register Summary reflects payments made to vendors, students, and employees in 
the month of October totaled $3,146,726.90. This summarizes all payment transactions of the 
College and includes payments made on previously approved purchase orders as well as travel 
expenses and varied monthly expenses in accordance with collective bargaining contracts. 

Additional documentation for payments is available in the Accounts Payable Department.

This report was reviewed by the President and the Finance & Facilities Committee of the Board 
of Trustees at a meeting held December 11, 2019.

Page 39 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Page 40 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Page 41 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Page 42 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Page 43 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Page 44 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Page 45 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Page 46 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



December 17, 2019: Interim Vice President Finance & Operations, Teresa Manfreda

4.4 Approval to Extend the New Jersey City University (NJCU) Lease Agreement 

Brookdale Community College (the “College”) and New Jersey City University (“NJCU”) have 
participated in a partnership providing educational services and programs to Monmouth County 
residents since the fall of 2003. 

On September 1, 2017, the College and NJCU entered into a Lease Agreement for classroom 
space and related educational services at the College’s Wall location East Building. Following the 
completion of the College’s new academic building “Wall West”, NJCU requested use of the new 
building to conduct additional programs for its students. On October 18, 2019, the First 
Amendment to the Lease Agreement addressed security costs and confirmed the end of the 
Lease Agreement term, which is June 30, 2020.  

The College is recommending a Second Amendment to the Lease Agreement which modifies the 
original Lease Agreement by extending the term for an additional 18 month period commencing 
July 1, 2020 and ending December 31, 2021. The Lease Agreement also increases the rent 
reflective of the inclusion of additional classrooms at the College’s Lincroft campus and 
additional evening classes at the Wall West Building beginning January 1, 2020 and running 
through December 31, 2021. The leasing obligation, based on the cost per square footage and 
hours of use, is outlined as follows:

1/1/2020 – 6/30/2020   $20,387.30/month, six months total of $122,325
7/1/2020 – 6/30/2021   $20,736.92/month, twelve month total of $248,843
7/1/2021 – 12/31/2021 $21,151.67/month, six month total of $126,151.67

NJCU is responsible for any additional IT line usage costs it incurs.

This report was reviewed by the President and Board of Trustees at the meeting held 
December 17, 2019

Page 47 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



December 17, 2019

R E S O L U T I O N

WHEREAS, it is inherent with the College’s Philosophy and Mission to provide the 

Monmouth County Community with maximum access to quality educational programs and 

services; and

WHEREAS, Brookdale Community College has maintained and operated a Higher 

Education Center in Wall since the fall of 2001 and;

WHEREAS, the College entered into an agreement with the New Jersey City University 

(NJCU) for continued educational partnership opportunities since the fall of 2003, and;

WHEREAS, the current location has proven satisfactory in terms of access and general 

accommodations for providing the community with the opportunity for accessible continued 

education; and

WHEREAS, the general conditions for extending the current Lease Agreement through 

December 31, 2021, have been review by the Board of Trustees; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of Brookdale Community 

College that the Lease Agreement with New Jersey City University, as indicated, has been 

extended for the period commencing January 1, 2020 and extending through 

December 31, 2021 via a Second Amendment,  which Second Amendment has been approved 

by the Board of Trustees. 

Page 48 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



 
 

December 17, 2019: Interim Vice President, Teresa Manfreda 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 Acceptance of Brookdale Community College’s FY19 Financial Statement Audit 

 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Higher Education Reorganization Act of 1994, the Board of 
Trustees authorized the appointment of external auditors, O’Connor & Drew, PC to perform the 
required audit for fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, at its April 30, 2019 meeting. 
 
 
An audit of financial accounts has been completed, and the results of the College’s FY19 
Financial Statement audit are herewith transmitted to the Board of Trustees for its review and 
acceptance. 
    
This report was reviewed by the President and the Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees at 
a meeting held December 16, 2019.  
 
 



Submitted for  LodgingApproval:  Board of Trustees Public Business Meeting – November 19December 
157, 2019                 

Page 1 of 2

Brookdale Community College
College Policy

6.3000 Student Conduct

I. Title of Policy

Student Conduct

II.  Objective of Policy

To communicate expectations in terms of student conduct while on campus, at regional 
locations and at College sponsored events, activities and functions.

III.  Authority 

N.J.S.A. 18A:64A-12

Bylaws 1.2050 and 1.3054

IV.  Policy Statement

At Brookdale Community College (“College”), freedom with responsibility is the 
prevailing principle of student life and conduct.

At Brookdale Community College (“College”), a safe and effective learning environment 
is paramount to our students’ success.  Therefore, the College shall develop 
appropriate rules to help ensure responsible student behavior and procedures that 
ensure due process to address student actions that violate the College’s established 
expectations.

As an educational institution, the College upholds the freedom to learn, to inquire, to 
dissent, to speak freely and to be heard, and to assemble and protest peacefully. The 
responsible enjoyment and exercise of these freedoms means respect for the
rights of all and cannot permit infringement upon the rights of others or interference with 
the peaceful and lawful use and enjoyment of College resources.

While the specific expectations and procedures are outlined in the College’s Student 
Code of Conduct (6.3000R) Accordingly, the following general statements shall prevail 
relative to student conduct:

1. All students shall conduct themselves at the College or at College sponsored 
activities in a manner that does not disrupt or obstruct College operations or functions or 

Page 49 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Submitted for  LodgingApproval:  Board of Trustees Public Business Meeting – November 19December 
157, 2019                 

Page 2 of 2

infringe upon, or interfere with, the lawful exercise of the rights and freedoms of others. 
The President is authorized to employ the process of the criminal and civil law to 
terminate any campus disruption and to restore College functions and in an effort to 
prevent injury to persons or property.

2. All Brookdale students must assume responsibility for their own conduct. Therefore, 
the President shall have the power to suspend or expel any student violating this policy 
Policy under procedures consistent with due process. Any violation of this policy 
constituting a criminal act, in addition to suspension or expulsion, may result in criminal 
prosecution at the discretion of the President.  In the event the College believes that an 
act implicates possible criminal wrongdoing, the College shall report same to the 
appropriate legal authority.

The President is responsible for administering this policy Policy within the framework 
of the foregoing principles and shall develop appropriate administrative 
regulations Regulations and administrative procedures to assure its implementation.

V. Responsibility for Implementation

President

Approved: 10/29/69
Revised: 7/12/01

Page 50 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Submitted for Approval:  Board of Trustees Public Business Meeting – December 17, 2019                 
Page 1 of 2

Brookdale Community College
College Policy

6.3000 Student Conduct

I. Title of Policy

Student Conduct

II.  Objective of Policy

To communicate expectations in terms of student conduct while on campus, at regional 
locations and at College sponsored events, activities and functions.

III.  Authority 

N.J.S.A. 18A:64A-12

Bylaws 1.2050 and 1.3054

IV.  Policy Statement

At Brookdale Community College (“College”), a safe and effective learning environment 
is paramount to our students’ success.  Therefore, the College shall develop 
appropriate rules to help ensure responsible student behavior and procedures that 
ensure due process to address student actions that violate the College’s established 
expectations.

As an educational institution, the College upholds the freedom to learn, to inquire, to 
dissent, to speak freely and to be heard, and to assemble and protest peacefully. The 
responsible enjoyment and exercise of these freedoms means respect for the
rights of all and cannot permit infringement upon the rights of others or interference with 
the peaceful and lawful use and enjoyment of College resources.

While the specific expectations and procedures are outlined in the College’s Student 
Code of Conduct (6.3000R), the following general statements shall prevail relative to 
student conduct:

1. All students shall conduct themselves at the College or at College sponsored 
activities in a manner that does not disrupt or obstruct College operations or functions or 
infringe upon, or interfere with, the lawful exercise of the rights and freedoms of others. 
The President is authorized to employ the process of the criminal and civil law to 
terminate any campus disruption and to restore College functions in an effort to prevent 
injury to persons or property.

Page 51 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



Submitted for Approval:  Board of Trustees Public Business Meeting – December 17, 2019                 
Page 2 of 2

2. All Brookdale students must assume responsibility for their own conduct. Therefore, 
the President shall have the power to suspend or expel any student violating this Policy 
under procedures consistent with due process.   In the event the College believes that 
an act implicates possible criminal wrongdoing, the College shall report same to the 
appropriate legal authority.

The President is responsible for administering this Policy within the framework of the 
foregoing principles and shall develop appropriate Regulations and administrative 
procedures to assure its implementation.

V. Responsibility for Implementation

President

Approved: 10/29/69
Revised: 7/12/01

Page 52 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



BROOKDALE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Board of Trustees

2020 Committee Appointments

Board Bylaw 1.4010, appointments to Standing Committee

Membership on standing committees of the Board of Trustees, except as otherwise herein expressly provided shall consist of five 
Trustees, including the Chair of the Committee.  The Board Chair is an ex officio member and the Vice Chair serves as an alternate to 
the Board Chair as an ex-officio voting member for purposes of a quorum.

Committees 
meeting 
monthly

Executive Committee (5)
Ms. Tracey Abby-White, Chair
Dr. Hank Cram – Vice-Chair
Ms. Suzanne Brennan
Mr. Bret Kaufmann
Ms. Marta Rambaud

Finance and Facilities (5)
Mr. Bret Kaufmann, Chair
Ms. Madeline Ferraro
Dr. Les Richens
Dr. Hank Cram
Ms. Latonya Brennan

Committees 
meeting 4 
times per year

Student Success & 
Educational Excellence 
(4)
Dr. Hank Cram, Chair
Dr. Les Richens
Mr. Bret Kaufmann
Ms. Lauren Deinhardt

Governance (5)
Ms. Suzanne Brennan, 
Chair
Ms. Madeline Ferraro
Ms. Marta Rambaud
Mr. Dan Becht
Ms. Latonya Brennan

Audit Committee (4)
Ms. Marta Rambaud, Chair
Mr. Paul Crupi
Mr. Dan Becht
Vacant

Committes 
Meeting on as 
needed basis

Private Public Partnership – Ad-Hoc
Ms. Suzanne Brennan
Ms. Barbara Horl
Ms. Lauren Deinhardt

Liaisons Liaisons
Liaison to New Jersey
Council of County Colleges (NJCCC)
Ms. Barbara Horl
NJCCC Trustees Ambassador
Ms. Barbara Horl

Liaison to Brookdale Community College 
Foundation
Vacant

* The Human Resources Committee – A committee of the whole

Page 63 of 64 12/16/2019 9:24:45 AM



SL
C,

 T
CR

 –
 W

ar
ne

r S
tu

de
nt

 L
ife

 C
en

te
r, 

Tr
us

te
es

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

Ro
om

; B
AC

, P
CR

 –
 B

AC
, P

re
sid

en
t’s

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

Ro
om

BR
O

O
KD

AL
E 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
CO

LL
EG

E 
SC

HE
DU

LE
 O

F 
BO

AR
D 

O
F 

TR
U

ST
EE

 M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

FO
R 

20
20

   
   

   
 v

2 
– 

11
/2

2/
19

20
20

Pu
bl

ic
 B

us
in

es
s M

ee
tin

gs
 (P

BM
)

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e
---

---
---

---
-

SL
C,

 T
CR

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

---
---

---
---

---
 

BA
C,

 P
CR

St
ud

en
t S

uc
ce

ss
 &

 
Ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
Ex

ce
lle

nc
e

Fi
na

nc
e 

&
 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
SL

C,
 T

CR

Au
di

t
---

---
---

---
--

BA
C,

 P
CR

Pu
bl

ic
 P

riv
at

e 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p
---

---
---

---
---

--
SL

C,
 T

CR

DA
TE

S/
LO

CA
TI

O
N

S
Pu

bl
ic

 B
us

in
es

s M
ee

tin
g

5:
30

 P
M

 

Sh
al

l m
ee

t 
pr

io
r t

o 
ea

ch
 

re
gu

la
r 

m
ee

tin
g 

Sh
al

l m
ee

t a
 

m
in

im
um

 o
f 

fo
ur

 t
im

es
 

pe
r y

ea
r o

r 
as

 
BA

CB
AC

BA
C

BA
re

qu
es

te
d.

Sh
al

l m
ee

t a
 

m
in

im
um

 o
f f

ou
r 

tim
es

 p
er

 y
ea

r o
r 

as
 n

ee
de

d

Sh
al

l m
ee

t 
m

on
th

ly
Sh

al
l m

ee
t a

 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 
fo

ur
 t

im
es

 p
er

 
ye

ar
 o

r 
as

 
re

qu
es

te
d.

Sh
al

l m
ee

t a
 

m
in

im
um

 o
f 

fo
ur

 t
im

es
 p

er
 

ye
ar

 o
r 

as
 

re
qu

es
te

d.
 

Tu
es

da
y,

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

28
Li

nc
ro

ft,
 S

LC
, N

av
es

in
k 

I &
 II

Ja
nu

ar
y 

21
5:

15
 P

M
Ja

nu
ar

y 
22

6 
PM

Ja
nu

ar
y 

21
5:

30
 P

M
Ja

nu
ar

y 
13

4:
30

 P
M

 
Tu

es
da

y,
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

25
Br

oo
kd

al
e 

at
 L

on
g 

Br
an

ch
, R

m
 2

00
Fe

br
ua

ry
 1

8
5:

15
 P

M
Fe

b.
 1

7
5:

30
 P

M
 B

AC
, P

CR
Fe

b.
 1

8
5:

30
 P

M
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

19
 6

 P
M

Tu
es

da
y,

 M
ar

ch
 2

4
Li

nc
ro

ft,
 S

LC
, N

av
es

in
k 

I &
 II

M
ar

ch
 1

7
5:

15
 P

M
M

ar
ch

 1
8

6 
PM

M
ar

ch
 1

7
5:

30
 P

M
M

ar
ch

 1
6

4:
30

 P
M

  

Tu
es

da
y,

 A
pr

il 
28

Li
nc

ro
ft,

 S
LC

, N
av

es
in

k 
I &

 II
Ap

ril
 2

1
5:

15
 P

M
Ap

ril
 2

0
5:

30
 P

M
 B

AC
, P

CR
Ap

ril
 2

1
5:

30
 P

M

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, M

ay
 2

7
N

ep
tu

ne
 H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
, 2

nd
 F

lo
or

 M
ed

ia
 

Ce
nt

er
 o

r F
re

eh
ol

d

M
ay

 1
9

5:
15

 P
M

M
ay

 1
9

5:
30

 P
M

  M
ay

 5
  6

 P
M

 M
ay

 1
8

 4
:3

0 
PM

 

Tu
es

da
y,

 Ju
ne

 2
3

Br
oo

kd
al

e 
at

 F
re

eh
ol

d,
 1

03
 &

 1
04

Ju
ne

 1
6

5:
15

 P
M

  J
un

e 
16

  5
:3

0 
PM

Tu
es

da
y,

 Ju
ly

 2
8

Li
nc

ro
ft,

 S
LC

, N
av

es
in

k 
I &

 II
Ju

ly
 2

1
5:

15
 P

M
Ju

ly
 2

1
5:

30
 P

M
Ju

ly
 2

0
 4

:3
0 

PM
  

N
O

 P
BM

 M
ee

tin
g 

in
 A

ug
us

t
Au

gu
st

 1
8

5:
15

 P
M

Au
gu

st
 1

8
5:

30
 P

M
Tu

es
da

y,
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
2

Li
nc

ro
ft,

 S
LC

, N
av

es
in

k 
I &

 II
Se

pt
em

be
r 1

5
5:

15
 P

M
Se

pt
. 1

6 
6 

PM
Se

pt
 1

4
5:

30
 P

M
  S

LC
, T

C
Se

pt
. 1

5
5:

30
 P

M
Se

pt
em

be
r 1

4
4:

30
 P

M
 

Tu
es

da
y,

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
7

Br
oo

kd
al

e 
at

 W
al

l, 
11

0 
&

 1
12

O
ct

ob
er

 2
0

5:
15

 P
M

O
ct

ob
er

 2
0

5:
30

 P
M

 O
ct

. 1
9

 6
 P

M
 

Tu
es

da
y,

 N
ov

em
be

r 1
7 

Li
nc

ro
ft,

 S
LC

, N
av

es
in

k 
I &

 II
 N

ov
em

be
r 1

0
 5

:1
5 

PM
  N

ov
. 1

1
  6

 P
M

 N
ov

. 9
 5

:3
0 

PM
, S

LC
, T

C
 N

ov
. 1

0
 5

:3
0 

PM
  N

ov
em

be
r 9

  4
:3

0 
PM

 

Tu
es

da
y,

 D
ec

em
be

r 1
5

Br
oo

kd
al

e 
at

 H
az

le
t, 

10
2 

&
 1

03
De

ce
m

be
r 9

5:
15

 P
M

De
c.

  9
5:

30
 P

M
De

ce
m

be
r 1

6 
PM

  

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 is
 a

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

f t
he

 w
ho

le

P
ag

e 
64

 o
f 6

4
12

/1
6/

20
19

 9
:2

4:
45

 A
M


	Agenda Page
	Call to Order, Reading of Statement and Roll Call
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Adoption of Agenda
	President’s Report
	Recognition of Women's Soccer Team

	Review of Consent Agenda
	Adoption of Consent Agenda 

	Reports from the Board Committees and Liaisons
	Finance & Facilities Committee - December 11, 2019   
	Monthly Financial Reporting 
	Update on Capital Projects

	Audit Committee - December 16, 2019
	Student's Perspective
	BCC Foundation
	Public Private Partnership Committee - December 16, 2019

	Public Comment on Agenda Items
	Approval of Public Business Meeting Minutes 
	Approval of Public Business Meeting Minutes - November 19, 2019
	BOT PBM Minutes 11192019 DRAFT.docx
	Attachment A BOT PBM Minutes November 19 2019.doc

	Approval of Executive Session Minutes - November 19, 2019
	BOT Exec Sess Minutes Nov 19 2019 Labor Negotiations DRAFT.docx
	BOT Exec Sess Minutes Nov 19 2019 Matters pertaining to attorney client priviledge DRAFT.docx
	BOT Exec Sess Minutes Nov 19 2019 Potential Litigation Wall DRAFT.docx


	Consent Agenda
	Human Resources Recommendations
	BOT HR Dec 2019.docx

	Confidential Non-represented & Executive Compensation - FY20
	3.2 Exec Comp with Resolution Dec 2019.docx

	Acceptance of Gifts
	1.51-Acceptance of Gifts-Automobiles-Professional Attire.docx

	Approval of Budget Modification to the New Jersey Department of Education, Office of Career Readiness
	2.3 Approval of Budget Modification-Perkins-2019-12-17.docx

	Purchases in Excess of $36,400 and New Jersey “Pay-to-Play” bids, and 	Pursuant to the New Jersey “Pay to Play” Process, in Excess of $17,500 
	12-17-19     4 2  12-12-19.doc

	Open Invoice Payment Requests for Vendors, Students and Employee Payments 
	12-17-19   4 2c  AP Check Register Summary.doc

	Monthly Financial Dashboards
	12-17-19  4 1  Financial Report.pdf
	12-02-19 PROJECT STATUS REPORT SIGNED.pdf


	Approval of Second Amendment to Lease Agreement with New Jersey  City University
	12-17-19    4 4    Approval to Extend NJCU Lease Agreement.doc

	Acceptance of FY19 Financial Audit
	Approval of Revised Policy 6.3000 Student Conduct
	6.3000 Student Conduct submitted for approval 12-17-19 markup.docx
	6.3000 Student Conduct submitted for approval 12-17-19.docx

	Public Comment
	Old/New Business
	Recess for Dinner
	Workshop on Enrollment 
	Enrollment Projections
	FY21 Budget Models

	Resolution to Hold a Closed Meeting
	Motion to Re-Open the Meeting to the Public
	Adjournment
	Appendix - Board Materials
	NOV 2019 BOT letter.docx
	BOT Report -NOV 2019.docx
	COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 2020..docx
	BOT 2020 All meetings schedule with locations v2.docx




